Cherwell District Council

Planning Committee

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held as a Virtual meeting, on 11 March 2021 at 4.00 pm

Present:

Councillor James Macnamara (Chairman)

Councillor Andrew Beere Councillor John Broad Councillor Phil Chapman Councillor Colin Clarke Councillor Ian Corkin Councillor Chris Heath Councillor David Hughes Councillor David Hughes Councillor Mike Kerford-Byrnes Councillor Cassi Perry Councillor Lynn Pratt Councillor George Reynolds Councillor Barry Richards Councillor Les Sibley

Substitute Members:

Councillor Richard Mould (In place of Councillor Hugo Brown) Councillor Barry Wood (In place of Councillor Maurice Billington) Councillor Ian Middleton (In place of Councillor Katherine Tyson)

Apologies for absence:

Councillor Maurice Billington Councillor Hugo Brown Councillor Simon Holland Councillor Katherine Tyson

Officers:

Alex Chrusciak, Senior Manager - Development Management Andy Bateson, Team Leader – Major Developments Frances Evans, Housing Strategy and Development Team Leader Caroline Ford, Principal Planning Officer – Major Projects Planning Team Samantha Taylor, Principal Planning Officer Bob Neville, Senior Planning Officer Jennifer Crouch, Solicitor Lesley Farrell, Democratic and Elections Officer Natasha Clark, Governance and Elections Manager

134 **Declarations of Interest**

8. Bicester Gateway Business Park, Wendlebury Road, Chesterton.

Councillor Les Sibley, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Bicester Town Council which had been consulted on the application.

Councillor Lynn Pratt, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Bicester Town Council which had been consulted on the application.

9. Blessed George Napier Roman Catholic School, Addison Road, Banbury, OX16 9DQ.

Councillor Andrew Beere, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Banbury Town Council which had been consulted on the application.

Councillor Barry Richards, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Banbury Town Council which had been consulted on the application.

Councillor Colin Clarke, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Banbury Town Council which had been consulted on the application.

11. Land Adjacent To The Oxford Canal, Spiceball Park Road, Banbury. Councillor Andrew Beere, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Banbury Town Council which had been consulted on the application.

Councillor Barry Richards, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Banbury Town Council which had been consulted on the application.

Councillor Barry Wood, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of the Executive and would leave the meeting for the duration of the item.

Councillor Colin Clarke, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Banbury Town Council which had been consulted on the application and a separate declaration as a member of the Executive and would leave the meeting for the duration of the item.

Councillor George Reynolds, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of the Executive and would leave the meeting for the duration of the item.

Councillor Ian Corkin, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of the Executive and would leave the meeting for the duration of the item.

Councillor Lynn Pratt, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of the Executive and would leave the meeting for the duration of the item.

Councillor Richard Mould, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of the Executive and would leave the meeting for the duration of the item.

135 Requests to Address the Meeting

There were no requests to address the Committee.

136 Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 11 February 2021 were agreed as a correct record and would be signed by the Chairman in due course.

137 Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman's announcements.

138 Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

139 **Proposed Pre-Committee Site Visits (if any)**

There were no proposed Pre-Committee site visits.

140 Bicester Gateway Business Park, Wendlebury Road, Chesterton

The Committee considered application 20/00293/OUT an outline application for (Phase 1B) including access (all other matters reserved) for up to 4,413 sqm B1 office space (47,502 sqft) GIA, up to 273 residential units (Use Class C3) including ancillary gym, approximately 177 sqm GIA of café space (Use Class A3), with an ancillary, mixed use co-working hub (794 sqm/ 8,550 sqft GIA), multi-storey car park, multi-use games area (MUGA), amenity space, associated infrastructure, parking and marketing boards at Bicester Gateway Business Park, Wendlebury Road, Chesterton for Bicester Gateway Limited.

In reaching its decision the Committee considered the officers report and presentation and the written updates.

Resolved

 That authority be delegated to the Assistant Director Planning and Development to grant permission for application 20/00293/OUT subject to:

a) the completion of a planning obligation under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as substituted by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, to secure the mitigation as set out in paragraph 2.45 of the 8 October Planning Committee report (as amended by the report submitted to the 11 March 2021 Planning Committee including supporting the officer position on the matters currently in dispute (RP Liability and Affordable Housing) giving a final list of Heads of Terms as follows:

- The provision of 30% Affordable Housing on site with the mix made up of 70% affordable rent and 30% intermediate tenures.
- Contribution towards outdoor sport towards a project for increased tennis court provision at Whitelands Farm Sports Ground based upon a per unit contribution of £922.81 per 1 bed unit and £1,333.75 per 2 bed unit, all figures index linked from 2Q17. These figures are discounted to account for the proposed MUGA on site. If no MUGA is provided on site, then the figures per unit applicable would be: £1,036.87 per 1 bed unit and £1498.60 per 2 bed unit, all figures index linked from 2Q17.
- Contribution towards indoor sport the expansion/ enhancement of indoor sport facilities at Bicester Leisure Centre based upon a per unit contribution of £429.21 per 1 bed unit and £620.34 per 2 bed unit, all figures index linked from 2Q17 if no ancillary gym is proposed on site. If an ancillary gym of no less than 27m² in area is provided, then contributions of £273.61 per 1 bed unit and £395.45 per 2 bed unit index linked from 2Q17 towards additional swimming pool capacity at Bicester Leisure Centre. The ancillary space to be retained for health and wellbeing purposes.
- The provision of a combined LEAP/LAP on site.
- Commuted sums for the management and maintenance of open spaces, mature trees/ hedgerows, SUDs features within open space, play facilities and the MUGA if these areas were to be transferred to the District Council or secure arrangements for a Management Company to carry out the long term management and maintenance in the event a transfer to the District Council does not take place with secure arrangements for the financing of the management and maintenance including monitoring by CDC.
- Contribution towards local primary health care to contribute to existing expansion plans for additional primary care infrastructure at Bicester based upon a per unit contribution of £504 per 1 bed unit and £720 per 2 bed unit, all figures index linked from 2Q17.
- Biodiversity contribution of £6000 towards the offsite biodiversity mitigation works planned at Bicester Wetland Reserve.
- Contribution of £24,195.90 towards highway safety improvement measures on the A41, index linked from December 2019.
- Contribution of £289,578.66 towards improvements to the surrounding local and strategic road network namely towards the western section of the South East Perimeter Route or to an alternative scheme or schemes which are expected to deliver similar or greater mitigation of

the potential transport impacts of cumulative development at the site and elsewhere in Bicester index linked from October 2019

- Contribution of £3,120 (index linked from January 2020) towards the cost of administering a Traffic Regulation Order to enable the relocation of the existing 40mph/ national speed limit signage to a point south of the development's southern access for road safety reasons.
- Contribution of £4,691.28 (index linked from December 2019) towards the monitoring of the Travel Plans.
- The requirement to agree to enter into a S278 agreement with the Local Highway Authority to deliver safe and suitable access to the development as approved by this application as well as the offsite measures identified:
- o Two bellmouth accesses off of Wendlebury Road with associated pedestrian and cycle facilities to link into existing infrastructure
- o A 3m shared use footway/ cycleway linking Vendee Drive link road and the Chesterton slip road to the site along the A41 including works to enable a crossing at the western end of Charles Shouler Way.
- o Relocation of the speed limit signage on Wendlebury Road.
- Arrangements for a northbound pedestrian/ cycle link along the Wendlebury Road west side north including a crossing to the eastern end of Charles Shouler Way IF Phase 1b were to progress in advance of development on Phase 2.
- Contribution of £308,592 (index linked) towards the expansion of primary education capacity at Chesterton Church of England Primary School (with a matrix arrangement to be introduced to account for changes in the size of units that may result at the reserved matters stage should that final mix result in a change in pupil generation).
- Contribution of £326,110 (index linked from 3Q19) towards secondary education – towards the cost of new secondary schools in the locality (with a matrix arrangement to be introduced to account for changes in the size of units that may result at the reserved matters stage should that final mix result in a change in pupil generation).
- Contribution of £5000 to CDC to administer and monitor the development and a contribution to OCC for the same purpose, the amount for which is to be confirmed.
- b) The following conditions (and any amendments to those conditions as deemed necessary):

CONDITIONS

TIME LIMITS AND GENERAL IMPLEMENTATION CONDITIONS

 No more than 4,413sqm (GIA) of floorspace for uses falling within Class B1a and B1b of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (or their equivalent in subsequent enactments or reenactments), shall be constructed on the site and the floorspace shall be used for no other purposes whatsoever. For the avoidance of doubt and with reference to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020, from the 01 September 2020, Use Classes B1a and B1b are now part of Class E, specifically Class E(g)(i) and E(g)(ii). The floorspace hereby approved, shall be used for no other uses covered by the other Categories of Class E.

Reason – In order to retain planning control over the use of the site and to ensure that the impacts of the development are no greater than those considered under this application in accordance with Policies SLE1 and Bicester 10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

2. No more than 177sqm (GIA) of floorspace for uses falling within Class A3 of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (or their equivalent in subsequent enactments or re-enactments) shall be constructed on the site and the floorspace shall be used for no other purposes whatsoever. For the avoidance of doubt and with reference to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020, from the 01 September 2020, Use Class A3 is now part of Class E, specifically Class E(b). The floorspace hereby approved, shall be used for no other uses covered by the other Categories of Class E.

Reason – In order to ensure that the facility is ancillary and supports the primary use of the site for business uses and to retain planning control over the use of the site in accordance with Policies SLE4 and Bicester 10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

3. No more than 794sqm (GIA) of floorspace shall be used as a mixed use co-working hub, a scheme for which, to include details of how the space shall be used by multiple, unconnected users in a way which is compatible and does not prejudice office type activities, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first use of the mixed use co-working hub. The mixed use co-working hub shall be used in accordance with the agreed scheme thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the final use of the facility is approved and to ensure that the proposal complies with Policies SLE1, SLE4 and

Bicester 10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

4. No development shall commence on a phase identified within an approved phasing plan until full details of access (in so far as not approved by this decision), layout, scale, appearance and landscaping (hereafter referred to as reserved matters) of the development proposed to take place within that approved phase have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, and Article 6 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure (England)) Order 2015 (as amended).

5. Application for approval of all the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission and the development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of five years from the date of this permission or before the expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved whichever is the later.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, and Article 5(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure (England)) Order 2015 (as amended).

6. Except where otherwise stipulated by conditions attached to the Reserved Matters Permission(s), the development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans and documents:

PL03C – Regulating Plan PL05 – Reserved Land 46463/5501/001 Rev C – Wendlebury Road Vehicle Access and Pedestrian Improvements 46463/5501/002 Rev A – Wendlebury Road Proposed Improvements (if required)

Reason - For the avoidance of doubt, to ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority and to comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance.

7. All site clearance (including the removal of any vegetation or works to hedgerows) shall be timed so as to avoid the bird nesting season, this being during the months of March until July inclusive unless the Local Planning Authority has confirmed in writing that such works can

proceed, based on submission of a survey (no more than 48hrs before works commence) undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on site, together with details of measures to protect the nesting bird interest on the site as required.

Reason: To ensure that the development will conserve and enhance the natural environment and will not cause significant harm to any protected species or its habitat to comply with Policy ESD10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

8. Except to allow for the creation of means of access with associated vision splays hereby approved, the existing hedgerows along the western (A41), southern and eastern (Wendlebury Road) boundaries of the site shall be retained and properly maintained from the date of this planning permission (unless otherwise approved as part of the approval of reserved matters submitted in requirement of Condition 2), and if any hedgerow plant/tree dies within five years from the completion of the development it shall be replaced and shall thereafter be properly maintained in accordance with this condition.

Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the area, to provide an effective screen to the proposed development and to comply with Policies ESD13 and ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031, saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

9. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the building(s) or on the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and shall be maintained for a period of 5 years from the completion of the development. Any trees and/or shrubs which within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent for any variation.

Reason: To ensure that the agreed landscaping scheme is maintained over a reasonable period that will permit its establishment in the interests of visual amenity and to accord with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

10. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site, no further development shall be carried out until full details of a remediation strategy detailing how the unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the remediation strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is identified and adequately addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Saved Policy ENV12 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

11. All applications for approval of reserved matters relating to an approved phase shall be accompanied by details of the existing ground levels together with proposed finished floor levels of all buildings within that phase (with the level no less than 65.30m AOD as set out in the plans accompanying the LLFA Response reference number JAG//43386/Lt004). Development in that phase shall thereafter be undertaken in accordance with the ground/floor levels approved as part of the grant of reserved matters approval.

Reason - To ensure that the proposed development is in scale and harmony with its neighbours and surroundings and to comply with Policy ESD 15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031, saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

12. All applications for approval of reserved matters relating to an approved phase shall be accompanied by details of the proposed ecological enhancement measures to be incorporated within that phase in line with the recommendations at paragraph 18 of the Ecology Briefing Note prepared by Ecology Solutions Limited. All proposed ecological enhancement measures shall thereafter be installed in accordance with the details approved as part of the grant of reserved matters approval.

Reason: To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from any loss or damage and to enhance ecological opportunities at the site in accordance with Policy ESD10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

13. All applications for approval of reserved matters relating to an approved phase shall be accompanied by an Energy Statement based upon Revision P02 of the Energy Statement prepared by Kyoob that demonstrates which sustainable design measures, including the provision of on-site renewable energy technologies, will be incorporated into that phase. The sustainable design measures shall thereafter be fully incorporated into the development of each phase and no occupation of development within the relevant phase shall take place until the approved sustainable design measures have been provided and, for on-site renewable energy provision, until such measures are fully installed and operational.

Reason – To ensure energy and resource efficiency practices are incorporated into the development in accordance with Policies Bicester 10, ESD3, ESD4 and ESD5 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

14. The non-residential floorspace hereby permitted shall be constructed to at least a BREEAM 'Very Good' Standard.

Reason – To ensure energy and resource efficiency practices are incorporated into the development in accordance with Policies Bicester 10, ESD3, ESD4 and ESD5 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

15. Notwithstanding any provisions contained within the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (and any Order or Statutory Instrument amending, revoking or re-enacting that order), all water supply, foul water, energy, power (except any approved renewable energy infrastructure) and communication infrastructure to serve the development shall be provided underground and retained as such thereafter except where specifically approved otherwise as part of a grant of reserved matters approval for a phase.

Reason - In the interests of ensuring that such above ground infrastructure is not constructed in unsuitable locations on the site where it would be harmful to visual amenity and to comply with Policy ESD 15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031, saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

PRE COMMENCEMENT CONDITIONS

16. No development shall take place until a phasing plan covering the entire application site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority identifying the phases by which development will take place. The phasing plan shall demonstrate the delivery of the approximately 794sqm (GIA) mixed-use co-working hub to be delivered as part of the first residential phase. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved phasing plan and applications for approval of reserved matters shall be submitted in accordance with the terms of the approved phasing plan and refer to the phase (or phases) to which they relate.

Reason: To ensure the proper phased implementation of the development and associated infrastructure in accordance with Policies ESD15, Bicester 10 and INF1 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of any development on the appropriate phase as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

- 17. No development shall take place on any phase, including any works of demolition until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The statement shall be appropriately titled (site and planning permission number) and shall provide for at a minimum:
 - The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
 - The routeing of HGVs to and from the site;
 - Loading and unloading of plant and materials;
 - Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
 - The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;
 - Wheel washing facilities including type of operation (automated, water recycling etc) and road sweeping;
 - Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;
 - A scheme for recycling/ disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction works;
 - Delivery, demolition and construction working hours;
 - Spoil locations
 - Water management

The approved Construction Method Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period for the development.

Reason: To ensure the environment is protected during construction in accordance with Saved Policy ENV1 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

- 18. No development shall take place on any phase (including demolition, ground works, vegetation clearance) until a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP: Biodiversity shall include as a minimum:
 - a) Arrangements for a site walkover survey undertaken by a suitably qualified Ecologist to ensure that no protected species, which could be harmed by the development have moved onto the site since the previous surveys were carried out. If any protected species are found, details of mitigation measures to prevent their harm shall be required to be submitted;
 - b) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities;
 - c) Identification of 'Biodiversity Protection Zones';

- d) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method statements);
- e) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features;
- f) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on site to oversee works;
- g) Responsible persons and lines of communication;
- h) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or similarly competent person;
- i) Best practice with regard to wildlife including use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs

The approved CEMP: Biodiversity shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from any loss or damage in accordance with Policy ESD10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

19. No development shall take place on any phase until an Arboricultural Method Statement for that phase, undertaken in accordance with BS:5837:2012 and all subsequent amendments and revisions to include a plan identifying which trees are to be retained and details of how they will be protected, is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, all works on site shall be carried out in accordance with the approved AMS and any tree protection measures shall be erected before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought onto the site for the purposes of development and shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus material has been removed from the site.

Reason: To ensure the continued health of retained trees/hedges and to ensure that they are not adversely affected by the construction works, in the interests of the visual amenity of the area, to ensure the integration of the development into the existing built environment and to comply with Policy C28 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

20. No construction shall take place until a Training and Employment Plan for the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. As a minimum this Plan shall include the arrangements by which the applicant (or other specified persons) will provide construction (and related trades) apprenticeship starts during construction of the development hereby approved. Construction shall take place in accordance with the agreed Plan.

Reason: Paragraphs 80 and 81 of the National Planning Policy Framework support and encourage sustainable economic growth. Para B14 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan 2011- 2031 recognises that it is important to ensure the population is sufficiently skilled to attract companies and investment to Cherwell and supports proposals to strengthen the skills base of the local economy. Strategic Objective 3 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan seeks to support an increase in skills.

- 21. No development shall take place until a Detailed Design, Surface Water Management Strategy, Drainage Strategy (including calculations, ground levels and plans), associated management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage for the site using sustainable drainage methods and details of the phasing of its provision has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The detailed drainage will follow the Outline Design principles set out in the following documents:
 - 43386 Lt004 LLFA Response (JAG) COMPLETE

The approved Sustainable Drainage System shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Detailed Design and prior to the first occupation of the development in that phase. The Sustainable Drainage Scheme shall be managed and maintained thereafter in perpetuity in accordance with the agreed management and maintenance plan.

Reason: To ensure that the principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal in accordance with Policy ESD8 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

22. No development shall take place on any phase until full details of the means of vehicular access between the land and the highway on Wendlebury Road including position, layout, and vision splays shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, and prior to the first occupation of any of the development, the means of access shall be constructed and retained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety, to ensure a satisfactory standard of construction and layout for the development and to comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme. 23. No development shall take place until full details of the combined footway/cycleways serving the site along the A41, Wendlebury Road, and accesses to the south onto the disused slip road including details of the pedestrian/cycle feature linking the site (over the culvert/ditch) to the A41, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved pedestrian and cycle facilities shall thereafter be provided prior to the first occupation any phase of the development.

Reason - In the interests of ensuring that suitable access is provided to the development that prioritises sustainable travel in accordance with the requirements of Policies Bicester 10 and SLE4 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and to comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to the commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

24. No development shall take place (including any demolition) until and prior to the submission of the first reserved matters application, a professional archaeological organisation acceptable to the Local Planning Authority, has undertaken an archaeological evaluation of the site. This evaluation will need to be undertaken in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation, which has first been agreed with the Local Planning Authority. The Archaeological Evaluation of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The conclusions of the Archaeological Evaluation shall be taken into account in the future layout of the application site.

Reason - To identify areas of significant archaeological interest not included in the previous evaluation to comply with Government advice in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (Section 16). This information is required prior to the commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

25. No development shall take place (including any demolition) until the results of the archaeological evaluation required by condition 24 have been agreed and full details of archaeological protection measures have been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) or equivalent document as set out in the Archaeological Mitigation Strategy (rev2 June 2020) submitted with this application.

Reason - To safeguard the physical preservation of significant archaeological deposits within the site to comply with Government advice in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (Section 16). This information is required prior to the commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

26. Following the approval of the archaeological protection measures required by condition 25, and prior to any demolition on the site and the

commencement of the development (other than in accordance with the archaeological protection measures required by condition 25), a second stage Written Scheme of Investigation, including a programme of methodology, site investigation and recording, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To secure the provision of archaeological investigation and the subsequent recording of the remains, to comply with Government advice in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (Section 16). This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

27. Following the approval of the second stage Written Scheme of Investigation referred to in condition 26, and prior to the commencement of the development (other than in accordance with the Written Scheme of Investigation), the programme of archaeological mitigation shall be carried out and fully completed in accordance with the approved second stage Written Scheme of Investigation. The programme of work shall include all processing, research and analysis necessary to produce an accessible and useable archive and a full report for publication which shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority within two years of the completion of the archaeological fieldwork.

Reason: To safeguard the identification, recording, analysis and archiving of heritage assets before they are lost and to advance understanding of the heritage assets in their wider context through publication and dissemination of the evidence in accordance with the NPPF (2019). This information is required prior to the commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme

28. No phase of the development shall take place until a desk study and site walk over to identify all potential contaminative uses on site, and to inform the conceptual site model has been carried out by a competent person and in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No development shall take place until the Local Planning Authority has given its written approval that it is satisfied that no potential risk from contamination has been identified.

Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is identified and adequately addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use to comply with Saved Policy ENV12 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

29. If a potential risk from contamination is identified as a result of the work carried out under condition 28, prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a comprehensive intrusive investigation in order to characterise the type, nature and extent of contamination present, the risks to receptors and to inform the remediation strategy proposals shall be documented as a report undertaken by a competent person and in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No development shall take place unless the Local Planning Authority has given its written approval that it is satisfied that the risk from contamination has been adequately characterised as required by this condition.

Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is adequately addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Saved Policy ENV12 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

30. If contamination is found by undertaking the work carried out under condition 28, prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a scheme of remediation and/or monitoring to ensure the site is suitable for its proposed use shall be prepared by a competent person and in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No development shall take place until the Local Planning Authority has given its written approval of the scheme of remediation and/or monitoring required by this condition.

Reason: To ensure that any ground and water contamination is adequately addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Saved Policy ENV12 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework. This information is required prior to commencement of the development as it is fundamental to the acceptability of the scheme.

CONDITIONS REQUIRING APPROVAL OR COMPLIANCE BEFORE SPECIFIC CONSTRUCTION WORKS TAKE PLACE

31. No piling shall take place until a Piling Method Statement (detailing the depth and type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which such piling shall be carried out, including measures to prevent and minimise the potential for damage to subsurface water infrastructure, and the programme for the works) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (in consultation

with Thames Water). Any piling must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of the approved Piling Method Statement.

Reason: In order to protect groundwater and to achieve sustainable development in accordance with Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

32. No development above slab level on any building proposed to contain residential units shall take place until a scheme for protecting the proposed dwellings from noise has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted scheme shall achieve internal levels that shall not normally exceed 30dB LAeq (8 hour) and 45dB LAmaxF in all sleeping areas between 2300 hours and 0700 hours. An internal level of 40dB LAeq 1 hour shall be achieved in all other areas of the building. An external level of 55dB LAeq (16 hours) shall be achieved in garden areas and balconies unless a higher level has been demonstrated as being acceptable through noise modelling. Any works which form part of the scheme shall be completed in accordance with the approved details before any of the permitted dwellings to which the scheme relates are occupied.

Reason - To avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life and to comply with Saved Policy ENV1 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

CONDITIONS REQUIRING APPROVAL OR COMPLIANCE BEFORE OCCUPATION

- 33.No part of the development shall be occupied until confirmation has been provided that either:
 - all water network upgrades required to accommodate the additional flows to serve the development have been completed; or
 - a housing and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed with Thames Water to allow additional properties to be occupied. Where a housing and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed no occupation shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed housing and infrastructure phasing plan.

Reason - Network reinforcement works are anticipated to be necessary to ensure that sufficient capacity is made available to accommodate additional demand anticipated from the new development. Any necessary reinforcement works will be necessary in order to avoid low / no water pressure issues. In order to comply with Policy ESD8 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 - 2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

34. If remedial works have been identified in condition 30, the relevant part of the development shall not be occupied until the remedial works have been carried out in accordance with the scheme approved under condition 30. A verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure that any ground and water contamination is adequately addressed to ensure the safety of the development, the environment and to ensure the site is suitable for the proposed use, to comply with Saved Policy ENV12 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

35. Prior to the occupation of any phase of the development hereby approved, an updated Framework Travel Plan, prepared in accordance with the Department of Transport's Best Practice Guidance Note "Using the Planning Process to Secure Travel Plans" and its subsequent amendments, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for that phase. This Framework Travel Plan shall be based on the draft document 46463 dated January 2020. The travel plan for each phase shall be implemented in accordance with the details approved.

Reason - In the interests of sustainability and to ensure a satisfactory form of development, in accordance with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

36. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, a Landscape and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the LEMP shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from any loss or damage in accordance with Policy ESD10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

37. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until it has been provided with a system of electrical vehicle charging to serve the development. In addition, ducting should be in place to allow for the easy expansion of the EV charging system as demand increases towards the planned phase out of ICE vehicles (ideally ducting should be provided to every parking space to future proof the development).

Reason: To comply with policies SLE 4, ESD 1, ESD 3 and ESD 5 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and to maximise opportunities for sustainable transport modes in accordance with Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

38. Prior to the first occupation of any development within a phase, a car park management plan relating to that phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The car park management plan shall include measures to ensure that the car parking areas within the phase are made available solely for use in connection with the use of the development hereby approved and for no other purpose whatsoever. Thereafter, the entirety of the development on Phase 1B shall operate in accordance with the approved car park management plan.

Reason - To ensure that car travel is not unduly encouraged as a means of accessing surrounding development and to comply with Policy SLE4 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 as well as Government guidance contained in the National Planning Policy Framework.

39. Details of external lighting including the design, position, orientation and any screening of the lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of those works. The lighting shall be installed prior to the first occupation of the development and operated in accordance with the approved details at all times thereafter.

Reason: In order to safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to achieve a suitable lighting scheme which would minimise the impact to ecology and biodiversity in accordance with Policy ESD10 and ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government advice in The National Planning Policy Framework.

40. No development shall be occupied until a scheme for the commissioning and provision of public art to be accommodated within the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any B1a floorspace or 150 residential units whichever is sooner.

Reason - To create an attractive and distinctive development in accordance with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 – 2031 Part 1, Policy C28 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

41. The dwelling(s) hereby approved shall not be occupied until bins for the purposes of refuse, food waste, recycling and green waste have been provided for use by each of the approved dwellings, in accordance with the Council's current bin specifications and requirements.

Reason - To provide appropriate and essential infrastructure for domestic waste management in accordance with the provisions of Policy INF1 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011 - 2031.

42. The development shall be constructed so as to meet as a minimum the higher Building Regulation standard for water consumption limited to 110 litres per person per day.

Reason: The site is located in an area of water stress and therefore reaching a higher level of water efficiency is required to comply with Policy ESD3 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031.

It was further resolved:

(2) That if the applicant continued to refuse to agree to sign a S106, following officer advice, by 31 March 2021 (or alternative date as agreed in writing with the LPA), then authority be delegated to the Assistant Director Planning and Development to refuse application 20/00293/OUT based on the lack of a completed S106 agreement required to secure the necessary infrastructure to mitigate the impacts of the development (with reference to policy that requires mitigation to be secured)

141 Blessed George Napier Roman Catholic School, Addison Road, Banbury, OX16 9DQ

The Committee considered application 20/02745/F for a school expansion to include the erection of a new teaching block and main assembly hall and the relocation of an artificial sports pitch at Blessed George Napier Roman Catholic School, Addison Road, Banbury, OX16 9DQ for Mr Fraser Long.

In reaching its decision the Committee considered the officer's report and presentation and the written update.

Resolved

- (1) That authority be delegated to the Assistant Director for Planning and Development to grant permission for application 20/02745/F subject to:
 - a) the payment of a Travel Plan monitoring fee of £1,426
 - b) the following conditions:

CONDITIONS:

Time Limit

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Plans

Except where otherwise stipulated by conditions attached to this permission, the development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans and documents: Design and Access Statement, Environmental Sustainability Statement and Energy Statement prepared by 'Integrated energy' Building Services, Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) prepared by Flo Consult UK Ltd, Surface Water Management Report prepared by Moran Structural Consultants Drawings labelled: 18020-CBP-Z0-00-M2-A-0001 Rev. P04, 18020-CBP-Z0-DR- A-2000 Rev. P05, 18020-CBP-Z0-00-M2-A-2001 Rev. P01, 18020-CBP-Z1-00-DR-A-3000 Rev. P04, 18020-CBP-Z1-00-DR-A-3001 Rev.P04, 18020-CBP-Z1-DR-A-2001 Rev. P02, 18020-CBP-Z1-XX-DR-A-4001 Rev.P05, 18020-CBP-Z1-XX-DR-A-4002 Rev. P05, 18020-CBP-Z2-00-DR-A-3010 Rev. P06, 18020-CBP-Z2-XX-DR-A-4020 Rev. P04, 18020-CBP-Z2-XX-DR-A-4021 Rev. P04, D1, D2, D3, D4, D5, C20026-M-150 Rev. C, C20026-M-160 Rev. C, 2020-78-DR01 Rev. T2, 2020-78-DR02 Rev. T1, 2020-78-DR03 Rev. T1, 2020-78-DR04 Rev. T1, 2020-78-DR05 Rev. T1 and 2020-78-DR10 Rev. T1.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt, to ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority and comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

Transport

3. Notwithstanding the details submitted, a Travel Plan prepared in accordance with Oxfordshire County Council's Guidance on Transport Assessments and Travel Plans shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first use or occupation of the development hereby permitted. The approved Travel Plan shall thereafter be implemented and operated in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of sustainability and to ensure a satisfactory form of development, in accordance with Policies SLE4 and ESD1 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

4. A School Bus Management Plan for the use of Springfield Avenue by buses carrying pupils to and from Blessed George Napier School shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first use or occupation of the development hereby permitted. The approved management plan shall thereafter be implemented and operated in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to mitigate the impact of school buses on the surrounding highway network, road infrastructure and local residents.

5. Prior to the first use or occupation of the development hereby

permitted, additional covered cycle parking facilities shall be provided on the site, and land within the site shall be allocated and reserved for future additional cycle parking, in accordance with details which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The covered cycle parking facilities so provided and the land allocated for future cycle parking shall thereafter be permanently retained and maintained for the parking of cycles in connection with the development.

Reason: In the interests of promoting sustainable transport modes in accordance with Policies SLE4 and ESD1 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

6. Prior to the first use or occupation of the development hereby permitted, an access path suitable for pedestrians and ridden or pushed bicycles shall be provided between the school buildings and the existing path along Salt Way, in accordance with details which shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The path so provided shall thereafter be permanently retained and maintained and be open and available for pupils and staff access to and from the school at the normal arrival and departure times at the beginning and end of the school day.

Reason: In the interests of promoting sustainable transport modes in accordance with Policies SLE4 and ESD1 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 7. Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved a Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The CTMP will need to incorporate the following in detail and throughout development the approved plan must be adhered to.
 - The CTMP must be appropriately titled, include the site and planning permission number.
 - Routing of construction traffic and delivery vehicles is required to be shown and signed appropriately to the necessary standards/requirements. This includes means of access into the site.
 - Details of and approval of any road closures needed during construction.
 - Details of and approval of any traffic management needed during construction.
 - Details of wheel cleaning/wash facilities to prevent mud etc, in vehicle tyres/wheels, from migrating onto adjacent highway.
 - Details of appropriate signing, to accord with the necessary standards/requirements, for pedestrians during construction

works, including any footpath diversions.

- The erection and maintenance of security hoarding / scaffolding if required.
- A regime to inspect and maintain all signing, barriers etc.
- Contact details of the Project Manager and Site Supervisor responsible for on-site works to be provided.
- The use of appropriately trained, qualified and certificated banksmen for guiding vehicles/unloading etc.
- No unnecessary parking of site related vehicles (worker transport etc) in the vicinity details of where these will be parked and occupiers transported to/from site to be submitted for consideration and approval. Areas to be shown on a plan not less than 1:500.
- Layout plan of the site that shows structures, roads, site storage, compound, pedestrian routes etc.
- A before-work commencement highway condition survey and agreement with a representative of the Highways Depot contact 0845 310 1111. Final correspondence is required to be submitted.
- Local residents to be kept informed of significant deliveries and liaised with through the project. Contact details for person to whom issues should be raised with in first instance to be provided and a record kept of these and subsequent resolution.
- Any temporary access arrangements to be agreed with and approved by Highways Depot.
- Details of times for construction traffic and delivery vehicles, which must be outside network peak and school peak hours.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to mitigate the impact of construction vehicles on the surrounding highway network, road infrastructure and local residents, particularly at morning and afternoon peak traffic times.

8. No development shall commence above slab level until a scheme for a system of ducting to allow for the future installation of electrical vehicle charging infrastructure to serve the dwelling has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the dwelling.

Reason: To comply with Policies SLE 4, ESD 1, ESD 3 and ESD 5 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and to maximise opportunities for sustainable transport modes in accordance with paragraph 110(e) of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Drainage

- 9. Notwithstanding the information submitted, no development shall commence until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed. The scheme shall include:
 - A compliance report to demonstrate how the scheme complies with the "Local Standards and Guidance for Surface Water Drainage on Major Development in Oxfordshire";
 - Full micro-drainage calculations for all events up to and including the 1 in 100 year plus 40% climate change;
 - A Flood Exceedance Conveyance Plan;
 - Detailed design drainage layout drawings of the SuDS proposals including cross-section details;
 - Detailed maintenance management plan in accordance with Section 32 of CIRIA C753 including maintenance schedules for each drainage element, and;
 - Details of how water quality will be managed during construction

Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage of the site and appropriate flood prevention and to comply Policy ESD 7 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 10. Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved, a record of the installed SuDS and the site wide drainage scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for deposit with the Lead Local Flood Authority Asset Register. The details shall include:
 - i). As built plans in both .pdf and .shp file format;
 - ii). Photographs to document each key stage of the drainage system when installed on site;
 - iii). Photographs to document the completed installation of the drainage structures on site;
 - iv). The name and contact details of any appointed management company information.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage of the site and appropriate flood prevention and to comply Policy ESD 7 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

11. No development shall be occupied until confirmation has been provided that either:- all water network upgrades required to

accommodate the additional flows to serve the development have been completed; or - a development and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed with Thames Water to allow development to be occupied. Where a development and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed no occupation shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed infrastructure phasing plan.

Reason: The development may lead to no / low water pressure and network reinforcement works are anticipated to be necessary to ensure that sufficient capacity is made available to accommodate additional demand anticipated from the new development

Sports Facilities Provision

12. No development shall commence until details of the design and layout of the Artificial Grass Pitch and Multi Use Games Area have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority . The Artificial Grass Pitch and Multi-Use Games Area shall not be constructed other than in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the development is fit for purpose and sustainable and to accord with Policy BSC 10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 13.a) The buildings shall not be occupied until the following documents have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:
 - i. A detailed assessment of ground conditions (including drainage and topography) of the land proposed for the playing field which identifies constraints which could adversely affect playing field quality; and
 - ii. Where the results of the assessment to be carried out pursuant to (i) above identify constraints which could adversely affect playing field quality, a detailed scheme to address any such constraints. The scheme shall include a written specification of the proposed soils structure, proposed drainage, cultivation and other operations associated with grass and sports turf establishment and a programme of implementation.

b) The approved scheme shall be carried out in full and in accordance with the approved programme of implementation. Thereafter the land shall be maintained in accordance with the scheme and made available for playing field use in accordance with the scheme.

Reason: To ensure that the playing field is prepared to an adequate standard and is fit for purpose and to accord with Policy BSC 10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance

contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

14. Within 12 months of development starting on site, a community use agreement prepared in consultation with Sport England shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreement shall set out the facilities to which it relates and include details of pricing policy, hours of use, access by non-educational establishment users, management responsibilities and a mechanism for review. The development shall not be used otherwise than in strict compliance with the approved agreement.

Reason: To secure well managed safe community access to the sports facility/facilities, to ensure sufficient benefit to the development of sport and to accord with Policy BSC 10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

15. Before the Artificial Grass Pitch is brought into use, a Management and Maintenance Scheme for the facility including management responsibilities, a maintenance schedule and a mechanism for review shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority after consultation with Sport England. This should include measures to ensure the replacement of the Artificial Grass Pitch within the manufacturer's specified time period. The measures set out in the approved scheme shall be complied with in full, with effect from commencement of use of the Artificial Grass Pitch.

Reason: To ensure that a new Artificial Grass Pitch is capable of being managed and maintained to deliver Artificial Grass Pitch which is fit for purpose, sustainable and to ensure sufficient benefit of the development to sport and to accord with Policy BSC 10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

Ecology and Biodiversity

16. Notwithstanding the details submitted prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved above slab level, a landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme for landscaping the site shall include:-

(a) details of any proposed tree and shrub planting including their species, number, sizes and positions, together with grass seeded/turfed areas,

(b) details of the existing trees and hedgerows to be retained as well as those to be felled, including existing and proposed soil levels at the base of each tree/hedgerow and the minimum distance between the base of the tree and the nearest edge of any excavation,

(c) details of the hard surface areas, including pavements,

pedestrian areas, reduced-dig areas, crossing points and steps.

Thereafter, the development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved landscaping scheme and the hard landscape elements shall be carried out prior to the first use or occupation of the development and shall be retained as such thereafter.

All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with BS 4428:1989 Code of Practice for general landscape operations (excluding hard surfaces), or the most up to date and current British Standard, in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the building(s) or on the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees, herbaceous planting and shrubs which, within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the current/next planting season with others of similar size and species.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area, to ensure the creation of a pleasant environment for the development and to comply with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1, saved Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

17. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, including any demolition, and any works of site clearance, a method statement for enhancing biodiversity at the site, including bat and bird nesting opportunities, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the biodiversity enhancement measures shall be carried out and retained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To protect habitats of importance to biodiversity conservation from any loss or damage in accordance with Policy ESD10 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

18. Notwithstanding the details submitted, prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved an Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS), undertaken in accordance with BS:5837:2012 and all subsequent amendments and revisions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, all works on site shall be carried out in accordance with the approved AMS.

Reason: To ensure the continued health of retained trees/hedges and to ensure that they are not adversely affected by the construction works, in the interests of the visual amenity of the area, to ensure the integration of the development into the existing built environment and to comply with Policy C28 of the Cherwell Local Plan 1996, Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

Other

19. No development shall commence until details of how the applicants will incorporate 'Secured by Design' principles and/or standards into the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and shall not be occupied or used until written confirmation of conformity is received by the authority.

Reason: In order to achieve a satisfactory form of development, to ensure that the development remains safe, inclusive and accessible and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience in accordance with Policy ESD15 of the Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 Part 1 and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

142 Land at Railway Line at Blackthorn and Piddington, Marsh Gibbon Road, Piddington

The Committee considered application 20/02936/F for phase 2 of the Blackthorn & Piddington rail embankment stabilisation scheme (installation of sheet piles to provide stabilisation to the railway embankments) at land at Railway Line at Blackthorn and Piddington, Marsh Gibbon Road, Piddington for Network Rail Infrastructure Limited.

In reaching its decision the Committee considered the officer's report and presentation and the written updates.

Resolved

(1) That authority be delegated to the Assistant Director Planning and Development to grant permission for application 20/02936/F subject to the following conditions (and any amendment to those conditions deemed necessary):

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 2. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete accordance with the approved plans: Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP), dated February 2021 Reference 21387/01;

Environmental Statement and Appendix; Noise Impact Assessment Addendum, dated February 2021; Habitat Creation and Restoration Scheme; Biodiversity calculations; Biodiversity Monitoring and Maintenance Strategy; Landscape Visual Impact Appraisal; Flood Risk Assessment, dated May 2020; and the following drawings: R167 05 5000, 5002, 5003 5004, 5005, 5006, 5007, 5008, 5009, 5010, 5011, 5012, 5013, 5014, 5015, 5016, 5017, 5018, 5019, 5020, 5021, 5022, 5023, 5024 and 7549; 198 1 Rev B, 198 2, 198 Rev C & 198 3 Rev B; SJG/109/100454/02/1006; SJG/109/100454/02/1006/01 Rev B; SJG/109/100454/02/1006/02 Rev B; SJG/109/100454/02/1006/03 Rev B and

SJG/109/100454/02/1006/04 Rev B; unless a non-material or minor material

amendment is approved by the Local Planning Authority under the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended).

Reason: To clarify the permission and for the avoidance of doubt.

3. No materials, plant, temporary structures or excavations of any kind should be deposited/undertaken on or adjacent to the Public Right of Way that obstructs the public right of way whilst development takes place.

Reason: To ensure the public right of way remains available and convenient for use.

4. The development should be designed and implemented to fit with the existing public rights of way network. No changes to the public rights of way's legally recorded direction or width must be made without first securing appropriate temporary or permanent diversion through separate legal process. Alterations to surface, signing or structures shall not be made without prior permission by Oxfordshire County Council.

Reason: To ensure the legal public right of way remains available and convenient for public use.

5. Any gates provided in association with the development shall be set back from the public right of way or shall not open outwards from the site across the public right of way.

Reason: To ensure the public right of way remains available and convenient for use.

6. The water quality management protection measures detailed in Appendix E to the approved Construction Environmental Management

Plan (CEMP) prepared by Murphy, dated 16 July 2020 shall be adhered to throughout the construction.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, and is not put at unacceptable risk from or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution in accordance with Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

7. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a full assessment of the impact of noise and vibration resulting from the development on 1 and 2 Cowleys Cottages shall be carried out and the report submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the recommendations and any mitigation measures set out in the report.

Reason: In the interests of the residential amenities of 1 and 2 Cowleys Cottages and to comply with Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

8. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) Reference 21387/01, dated February 2021 and produced by Turner Jomas and Associates.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of nearby residential properties and highway safety and to comply with Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

9. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the Ecological

Management Plan and the on and off-site ecological mitigation measures set out in the Environmental Statement.

Reason: In the interests of protecting wildlife and supporting habitat and creating ecological enhancements in accordance with Policy ESD10 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

10. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a report on the hydrological impact of the drainage works on Meadow Farm Local Wildlife Site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report is to detail appropriate mitigation measures should they be considered necessary, including any amendments to the approved scheme. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of protecting wildlife and supporting habitat and creating ecological enhancements in accordance with policy ESD10 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 and Government guidance within the NPPF. 11. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (Ref: P2451J1890 Version 3.0, dated 10/12/2020) and the following mitigation measures it details: Compensatory storage and flood risk mitigation should be provided in accordance with Section 7. These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and subsequently in accordance with the schemes timing/phasing arrangements. The measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To prevent flooding elsewhere by ensuring that compensatory storage of flood water is provided, in accordance with Policy ESD6 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan 2011-2031 and Government guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

143 Land Adjacent To The Oxford Canal, Spiceball Park Road, Banbury

The Committee considered application 20/03692/DISC for the discharge of Condition 9 (Car Park Payment Strategy) for Block B of application 17/00284/REM at Land adjacent to the Oxford Canal, Spiceball Park Road, Banbury for Ian Wallace.

In reaching its decision the Committee considered the officer's report and presentation.

Resolved

(1) That permission be grated for application 20/03692/DISC subject to the following conditions

Condition 9 – Car Parking Payment Strategy Skidata Car Parking System Tech Sub Proposal, dated 23.10.20

144 Appeals Progress Report

The Assistant Director Planning and Development submitted a report which kept Members informed about planning appeal progress including the scheduling of public inquiries and hearings and decisions received.

Resolved

(1) That the position on planning appeals contained within the report be noted.

The meeting ended at 6.17 pm

Chairman:

Date: